
January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 1

Minutes of the Planning Board of the Town of LaFayette held on January 18, 2005 at 
7:00 p.m. in the Meeting Room of the LaFayette Commons Office Building at 2577 
Route 11 in the Town of LaFayette. 
 
 Present: James Nakas, Chairman 
   Andrew Peebles, Member 
   Richard Markoff, Member 
   Barbara Lasky, Member 
   Bradley Bush, Member 
 
 Recording Secretary:  Mary Jo Kelly  
 
 Others Present:   John Langey, Town Attorney 
      Tim & Cathy Keough, Applicant 
      Councilwoman Sandra Smith 
      Christine Schoeck, Applicant 
      Ken Schoeck, 6159 Weatherburn Circle 
      Allen Olmsted, Applicant Rep. 
       John Albanese, Applicant 
      Sally Slavich, 4140 West Shore Manor 
      Mark Albright, 2920 LaFayette Rd. 
      Ron DeRollo, Applicant 
      Bob Keough 
 

Chairman Nakas called the Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  and welcomed 
everyone.  He advised some applicant’s have asked to be removed from the agenda this 
evening.  They are Jeff Cohen Case - #331, Kathy Williams Case -  # 342 and Lynn 
Hutton – Case # 348. 

Chairman Nakas asked if there were any changes to the December 21, 2004 
Meeting Minutes as submitted by the secretary.  There were none.  The Minutes will 
stand as written. 
 

       CASE # 341 - Public Hearing continued for appeal of CRAM 
Communications, LLC for a resubdivision of their 
property located approximately 1600’ north of the 
Webb Rd. and Groth Rd. intersection in an Industrial 
District. (Tax Map No.’s 025-05-12.2 & 025-05-14) 

 
John Langey said he has been continuing to try to contact the professional 

reviewing this application.  Clough Harbor has passed all the information on to the 
expert.  He proposes that he contact Mr. Fox to see if together they can’t contact Clough 
Harbor to try to make contact with the expert. 

Chairman Nakas asked if there was any information on the archeological 
sensitivity of this location. 

John Langey said not yet. 
 



January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 2

   
  CASE # 350 - Public Hearing for appeal of John Albanese for a  

   resubdivision of his property located at the intersection  
   of Palladino Rd. and Apulia Rd. in an  
   Agricultural/Residential District. (Tax Map No.’s 006.- 
   03-04.0, 006.-03-02.1, 006.-03-06.0, & 006.-03-03.0) 
        
Chairman Nakas said County Planning had a problem with the sight distance on 

Apulia Rd. 
John Albanese said the driveway was approved years ago.  He believes it was 

about 5-6 years ago.  They are just proposing to make Lot 2A a legal building lot in 
accordance with the submitted map dated 11/29/2004 and prepared by Christopherson 
Land Surveying.  

Chairman Nakas said if the driveway was accessible from Palladino Rd., this 
application would be O.K. 

John Langey said the applicant could take this map to the D.O.T. and show them 
where he is proposing to put the driveway and get a letter from them stating they will 
approve it. 

John Albanese asked if he would have to wait until next month’s meeting for 
approval. 

Chairman Nakas said yes. 
John Langey reviewed the resolution for the previous subdivisions pertaining to 

this property.  He advised it appears the D.O.T. did approve the proposed driveway and 
County Planning granted approval.  There is a letter from the D.O.T. dated 3/20/2000 
advising driveway approval.  You have a new resolution from County Planning 
recommending denial due to sight distance.  The old letter from the D.O.T. does not 
make reference to the map.  There is a resolution dated 6/20/2000 granting approval of 
the previous subdivision.  He said the Board could send the applicant to the D.O.T. with a 
copy of the old letter and this map and ask the D.O.T. for a letter of approval.  The Board 
could ask the applicant to go to the D.O.T. without any past information and show where 
they are proposing to put the driveway and ask for approval.  If the Board is comfortable 
enough with the information they have, they can over-rule County Planning based on the 
old resolution for the previous subdivision showing this driveway cut. 

Member Peebles believes there is sufficient evidence from the old application. 
John Langey said he is comfortable with any of the 3 above options. 
The Board was comfortable with the data received. 
Chairman Nakas asked if anyone was present to comment for or against this 

application.  No one came forward. 
Member’s Markoff moved and Bush seconded the motion to close the public 

hearing.   Motion passed unanimously. 
Member’s Peeble moved and Bush seconded the motion to declare this Board 

Lead Agency, this is an unlisted action and a negative declaration in the SEQR 
process and to over-rule Onondaga County Planning and grant preliminary and 
final plat approval based on the original resolution approving the previous 
subdivision March 20, 2000.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 



January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 3

         CASE  #335 - Public Hearing continued for appeal of  Mr. DeRollo for 
a 2-lot subdivision of his property located at 4131 Route 
91 approximately 1 ½ mile south of the Route 91 and 
Route 173 intersection in an Agricultural/Residential 
District.  (Tax Map # 001.-05-13.2). 

 
Ron DeRollo submitted a revised map dated 10/1/2004 and prepared by Cottrell 

Land Surveyors.  
Chairman Nakas asked how far the house would be from Mr. Fitts’ residence. 
Ron DeRollo said 70-80 yards.   
Chairman Nakas said surrounding property owners need to be put on the map.  

This is required when you submit the map to the county. 
John Langey said the referral to County Planning was made for the variance and 

subdivision  combined.  They had the following recommendations: 
1) The northern existing driveway on Rte. 91 from proposed Lot 2 

shall be closed.  A single driveway shall be allowed from each 
proposed lot to meet the requirements of the N.Y.S. D.O.T. 

2)  Town approval should be contingent upon approval of septic 
systems for both proposed lots by the Onondaga County Health 
Dept.   

 When requesting a variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals, the applicant 
agreed to put a spot of demarcation between the driveways.  The Zoning Board of 
Appeals was fine with this. 

Member Peebles said his only question is the location of the potential well and  
septic systems for Lot 2. 
 Member DeRollo showed where the existing septic system and well are allowing  
room for the potential well and septic. 

Chairman Nakas asked if there was anyone present to speak in favor of or against 
this application.  No one came forward. 

Member’s Markoff moved and Bush seconded the motion to close the public 
hearing.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Member’s Markoff moved and Bush seconded the motion to declare this 
Board Lead Agency, this is an unlisted action and a negative declaration in the 
SEQR process and to grant preliminary and final plat approval.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
      CASE # 351 - Public Hearing for appeal of Timothy & Deborah  

    Golick, & Terry Myers Scala for a 2-lot subdivision of  
   their property located approximately 1,000’ south of the  
   Reidy Hill Rd. and LaFayette Rd. intersection on the  
   east side of LaFayette Rd. in an  
   Agricultural/Residential District. (Tax Map # 008.-01- 
   08.2) 
 
Allen Olmsted was present to represent the application.   He submitted a map 

dated 1/6/2004 and prepared by David Vredenburgh. 



January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 4

Chairman Nakas asked for any comments from the public regarding this 
application.  There were none. 

Chairman Nakas asked for any comments from the Board. 
Member Peebles asked if there would be one building on each lot or would there 

be some sort of development. 
Allen Olmsted believes there will be a single family dwelling on each lot.  If 

anything were to happen, it would only be on Lot 2.  Practically speaking, he doesn’t 
think it will ever be able to be developed in the near future. 

Chairman Nakas asked if there were any problems with well water up there. 
Allen Olmsted said not that he knows of.  The average well will probably be 

about 5-6 gallons/minute.  They will probably have to drill a little deeper.  Until they 
actually drill the well, it would be hard to know.  It’s not known as a dry hill. 

Chairman Nakas said not having heard back from County Planning, this Board 
cannot go any further tonight.  We can close the public hearing. 

Member’s Markoff moved and Lasky seconded the motion to close the public 
hearing.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
        CASE # 348 -  Sketch Plan Conference continued for appeal of Lynn  
   Hutton for a 6-Lot subdivision of his property located  
   approximately 1,000’ from the Summerridge & Amidon  
   Rd. intersection on Summerridge Rd. in an  
   Agricultural/Residential District. (Tax Map No.’s 021.- 
   02-04.1,  021.-06-03.0, & 021.-06-04.0) 
 
The applicant asked to be removed from tonights agenda. 
    
   CASE # 342 - Sketch Plan Conference continued for Kathy Williams 

application for a 2-lot subdivision of property located 
on the east side of Route 11A approximately 570’ south 
of the Webster Rd. and Route 11A intersection in an 
Agricultural/Residential District. (Tax Map No. 015.-03-
08.0) 

 
The applicant asked to be removed from tonights agenda. 
 
      CASE # 349 - Sketch Plan Conference continued for appeal of 

Christine Schoeck for a 2-lot subdivision of her 
property located at the west end of Ashburn Drive 
approximately ¾ mile from the Ashburn Dr. and Route 
20 intersection in an Agricultural/Residential District.  
(Tax Map # 017.-04-09.1). 

       
Chairman Nakas said the Board has received a letter from Leon Cook dated 

1/10/2005 regarding approval of the driveway access. 



January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 5

Ken Schoeck said Leon Cook is happy with the turn-around at the end of the road.  
It’s a hammerhead and Leon Cook said it’s convenient for snow removal.  The drive will 
come directly off the hammerhead. 

Chairman Nakas asked what this does to the remaining parcel. 
Ken Schoeck said that lot also has access from Route 20 and another spot off of 

Ashburn Dr.  This essentially terminates Ashburn Drive at this point. 
Chairman Nakas said the Board has received a letter from John Dunkle dated 

1/14/2005 stating if there is any further development of either of these lots they must 
have access onto Route 20. 

Ken Schoeck said John Dunkle would recommend Ashburn Dr. go around and 
connect to Route 20 if further development occurred.  Basically they have no intention of 
subdividing the 7-acre parcel any further. 

Chairman Nakas asked if they will have to pump waste water. 
Ken Schoeck said yes.  He described the system. 
John Langey asked how long  the pump lasts. 
Ken Schoeck said quite awhile.  They have some that have been in place for about 

15 years with no problem.  If the system is designed correctly, to change a pump out is 
not a big deal. 

Chairman Nakas said with a large lot like Lot 2, County Planning quite often 
requests a build-out plan. 

Ken Schoeck said he has some old plans he can bring forward that would show 
this. 

Chairman Nakas asked if it would be appropriate to put language on the map that 
would say any future subdivision of Lot 424 must be accompanied by Ashburn Dr. 
connecting to Rte. 20 as John Dunkle suggested in his letter. 

John Langey said this is up to the Board. 
Ken Schoeck said if someone wished to subdivide Lot 2 in the future, they would 

have to come before this Board and the Board could address this concern at that time. 
Member Peebles believes nothing more than a single family residence should 

dump onto Ashburn Dr..  It would put too much burden onto the dead-end road. 
John Langey said it appears that neither Leon Cook nor John Dunkle is looking 

for the hammerhead to be changed.  A new owner of Lot 2 would have to negotiate for an 
easement to connect the road.  Most land purchases would be subject to subdivision 
approval. 

Ken Schoeck suggested possibly leaving an easement that would expire in about 
20 years. 

John Langey and the Board were not in favor of this. 
Chairman Nakas said this will be referred to County Planning and scheduled for a 

public hearing next month. 
Member Peebles asked who actually owns the property. 
Ken Schoeck said he and Chris along with their other brothers and sisters. 
John Langey said the Board will need a letter from them all stating they are O.K. 

with this. 
 
     CASE #  352 Sketch Plan Conference continued for Tim and  Cathy  

    Keough resubdivision modification of existing Keough  



January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 6

    Farm Subdivision to allow Lot # 2 to be an approved  
    building lot of property located  on the west side of  

   Route  91 approximately ½ mile south of the Jamesville  
   Dam in an Agricultural/Residential District.  (Tax Map  
   No. 001.-05-10.7) 

  
Tim and Cathy Keough were present. 
Tim Keough said he is asking for clarification on what he needs to do to be able 

to build on Lot 2 of the previously approved Keough Farm Subdivision dated 5/18/2004 
per map dated 2/28/2004 and prepared by Jay D. Holbrook. 

John Langey said the applicant is proposing to remove the note “Not an approved 
building lot” on Lot 2 from the map. 

Tim Keough asked if he would have to just get the D.O.T.’s approval to get the 
note removed.  He showed the Board paperwork showing the driveway permit has been 
approved. 

Chairman Nakas asked if there is an approved septic design. 
Tim Keough said it’s at the County Health Dept. right now.  The only other 

concern was the stormwater runoff.  He has a note stating this will not be a concern. 
Bob Keough said he doesn’t think any of them realized what this wording meant. 
Member Peebles said the public was generally O.K. with this moving through.  

There weren’t a lot of people speaking out on this because it wasn’t for proposed building 
lots. 

John Langey said he senses the Board is willing to work with the applicant to get 
the wording removed from the map for Lot 2. 

Chairman Nakas asked if the wording can be taken off all the lots and go through 
a public hearing, etc. 

Tim Keough said Lot # 2 is officially deeded to him.  It’s a separate entity from 
the other lots. 

John Langey said but it’s part of an approved subdivision.  He thinks the applicant 
is asking if there is any way to do this without coming before this Board.  He thinks this 
would come down to Ralph Lamson.  Was the Planning Board’s intent that as long as 
septic approval and D.O.T. approvel were received an owner could proceed to build?  If 
that is the case, he can call Ralph Lamson and tell him.  Was the Planning Board’s intent 
that if an owner wanted the language removed they must come back before this Board? 

Chairman Nakas said originally the applicants were not looking for approval for 
building lots.  Now he is convinced down the road each person will be asking for the 
wording to be removed.  If all of these had been presented as building lots there could 
have been some discussion at the public hearing.  Input from surrounding property 
owners, etc. could have been heard. Now it’s like doing an end-run around the entire 
process. 

Tim Keough said he has concerns regarding John Dunkle’s letter stating no 
removal of vegetation or landscaping should occur. 

John Langey would recommend the applicant talk to John Dunkle about any 
concerns he has with John’s letter. 

Chairman Nakas asked what the easy solution would be. 



January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 7

John Langey said the applicant needs the dark black lettering removed from Lot 2.  
The only way to do this is to amend the map.  The only way to amend the map is to have 
all the involved property owners send a letter stating they approve of this and then have 
the map amended.  He would recommend the applicant talk to John Dunkle and SHPO 
and get something in writing from them stating they are not concerned about any 
archeological findings on the site. 

Tim Keough said he spoke to Nancy at SHPO and she advised the Planning Board 
must determine this.   

John Langey would recommend he get a letter from Nancy stating what little 
concern she has about this site. 

Chairman Nakas asked if the applicant is O.K. with this. 
Tim Keough said the timing is getting tight for him. 
Chairman Nakas said if the applicant can get the materials requested and this can 

be referred to County Planning, we can schedule it for a public hearing next month. 
Tim Keough asked if he spoke to Ralph Lamson and addressed the issues and 

Ralph was willing to approve this lot for a building lot, would that be O.K.? 
John Langey said he doesn’t think that would work because Ralph Lamson has 

seen the note on the map. 
Member Peebles said the public who had  concerns about this being a proposed 

development may come forward now. 
Chairman Nakas said well water may be an issue. 
John Langey said the applicant must get a letter from the surrounding property 

owners that they are O.K. with this amendment. 
It was determined the applicant must pay a $150 application fee and a $300 

Developer Deposit. 
 

CASE # 331 Public Hearing for appeal of Jeffrey Cohen for a 21-lot  
  subdivision of his property located at 4065 Route 91 approximately 1  
  ¼ mile south of the Route 91 and Route 173 intersection on the west  
  side of Route 91 in an Agricultural/Residential District. 
 
 Applicant requested to be removed from tonight’s agenda. 

 
Mark Albright came forward.  He wanted to review the map of the proposed 

Golick subdivision.  He requested the Minutes from this Meeting be sent to him. 
 
Member’s Markoff moved and Lasky seconded the motion to adjourn.  

Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Planning Board Meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Mary Jo Kelly 



January 18, 2005 – Planning Board Meeting Minutes 8

Secretary 
 
 


